QA-600

Graham House

612 Batts Neck Road
Stevensville vicinity
Queen Anne’s County

Constructed ca. 1885
Private

Located on Batts Neck, on Kent Island in Queen Anne’s County, the Graham House is a
two-and-one-half-story I-house with a substantial rear ell addition. It faces north towards
Batts Neck Road. A non-historic frame shed sits to the southeast of the house, and a non-

historic frame barn is located to the house’s southwest.

The Graham House displays a typical I-house form, with its single-pile, center-hall plan.
Reflecting nation-wide trends, the [-house form was common among rural residences in
Queen Anne’s County from the mid-nineteenth century through the first years of the
twentieth century. Edwin K. and Martha Graham likely built the house circa 1885 on
twenty-five acres that they bought from Henry C. Legg, a substantial landowner in this
part of Kent Island. The Grahams owned the property on Batts Neck for twenty years,
until they defaulted on their mortgage in 1904. Between 1904 and the early 1970s, this
small farm passed through numerous owners, and was a tenant farm for much of the

twentieth century.
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1. Name of Property (indicate preferred name)
historic Graham House
other

2. Location

street and number 612 Batts Neck Road __not for publication
city, town Stevensville, MD 21666 X vicinity
county Queen Anne’s County

3. Owner of Property (give names and mailing addresses of all owners)

name Eduardo C. Curlett and Heather L. Cooney-Curlett, T/E
street and number 612 Batts Neck Road telephone
city, town Stevensville state MD zip code 21666-3004

4. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Queen Anne’s County liber SM 883 folio 469

city, town Centreville tax map 63 tax parcel 147 tax ID number  04-072227

5. Primary Location of Additional Data

Contributing Resource in National Register District

Contributing Resource in Local Historic District

Determined Eligible for the National Register/Maryland Register
Determined Ineligible for the National Register/Maryland Register
Recorded by HABS/HAER

Historic Structure Report or Research Report at MHT

Other:

6. Classification

Category Ownership Current Function Resource Count

_____ district ____ public agriculture __ landscape Contributing Noncontributing

_ X building(s) X _private __ commerce/trade _ recreation/culture 1 2 buildings

__structure _ both __ defense _religion 0 0 sites

site _ X domestic _____ social 0 0 structures

____ object __ education __ transportation ] 0 objects

__funerary ____work in progress 1 2 Total
government unknown

__ health care vacant/not in use Number of Contributing Resources
_____industry other: previously listed in the Inventory

0



7. Description Inventory No. QA-600

Condition
__ excellent ___deteriorated
X good ____ruins
___fair __altered
Summary

Located on Batts Neck, on Kent Island in Queen Anne’s County, the Graham House is a two-and-one-half-story I-house with a
substantial rear ell addition. It faces north towards Batts Neck Road. A non-historic frame shed sits to the southeast of the house, and
a non-historic frame barn is located to the house’s southwest.

Primary Resource Exterior Description

The Graham House is located on Batts Neck, part of Kent Island in Queen Anne’s County. Situated on the southwest corner of Batts
Neck Road and Jean Road, the house faces north towards Batts Neck Road. It stands almost three and three-quarters of a mile
southwest of Stevensville. The circa 1885 house is a two-and-one-half-story, three-bay, frame I-house. It stands approximately 25
feet from Batts Neck Road, on a level, grassy lot. A wooded lot borders the property on the west, while a line of trees marks the
southern property line. A screen of trees also lines Jean Road south of the house’s gravel driveway, which runs southwest from Jean
Road to the rear of the house. The land across Batts Neck Road from the house is used for agricultural purposes. A frame shed sits to
the southeast of the house, and a frame barn is located to the house’s southwest.

The Graham House sits on a brick pier foundation. It has a side-gable roof with a centered front gable and cornice returns; the roof is
sheathed with standing-seam metal. Interior-end brick chimneys with corbelled caps are situated at either end of the main block of the
house. The house’s exterior has been altered by the addition of new materials. Fiber-cement weatherboards clad the exterior, vinyl
windows have replaced all of the original windows, and a new door occupies the centered front entry.

The symmetrically organized fagade of the Graham House features two, two-over-two windows flanking the entry in the first story,
and three evenly spaced, two-over-two windows in the second story. The central entry is sheltered by a shed-roofed hood that is
supported by large, scroll-sawn, wood brackets. An arched, two-over-two, wood window occupies the gable. The west elevation of
the main block is pierced only by two small, one-light windows located in the gable. The south elevation is dominated by the two-
story rear ell that was constructed in 2006; a two-over-two, double-hung window occupies the second story of the main block at the
western end. The main block’s east elevation displays two attic-level windows matching those on the west elevation, and a first-story,
nine-light-over-two-panel, wood door at the northeast corner.

The 2006 ell addition attached to the south elevation of the main block matches the house in its proportions and roof pitch. A one-
story, three-bay, shed-roofed, screened porch runs the length of the ell’s west elevation, and fills the entire space between the ell and
the main block. The screened porch sits above-grade on concrete-block piers; wood lattice screens the foundation. A one-story, three-
bay, open porch runs the length of the ell’s east elevation. Its shed roof is supported by wood Tuscan columns. The ell’s second-story
windows match those found in the house’s main block, with the exception of two small, four-light, fixed, vinyl windows on the west
elevation.

Primary Resource Interior Description

The main block of the Graham House displays a single-pile, center-hall plan. A dining room flanks the hall on its west side, while a
kitchen is on its east side. A wide, cased opening leads from the rear (south) end of the hall into a transverse hall at the north end of
the ell addition. A living room fills almost the entire first floor of the addition. The Graham House has no basement, and the attic is
completely finished.

The overwhelming majority of the Graham House’s interior finishes have been replaced with non-historic materials. The only
identifiably original finishes are the staircase, and the flooring in the dining room and front two-thirds of the hall. The open-stringer
stair is decorated by a square, wood newel post with an unadorned, square, wood cap; turned wood balusters; an unmolded wood rail;
and scroll-sawn wood brackets on the stringer. The original flooring in the hall and dining room comprises random-width pine
floorboards. The new wood flooring in the hall is similar, but with even-width floorboards. Vinyl tiles cover the kitchen floor. An
approximately three-inch- tall, wood baseboard that rests on a molded base was recently installed throughout the house. The firebox



8. Significance Inventory No. QA-600

Period Areas of Significance Check and justify below
__1600-1699 __ agriculture __ economics __ health/medicine __ performing arts
__1700-1799 __ archeology __ education __ industry __ philosophy
X 1800-1899 X architecture __ engineering __ invention __ politics/government
X 1900-1999 __art __ entertainment/ __landscape architecture __ religion
___ 2000- ___commerce __ recreation _ law ___science
___ communications __ ethnic heritage __ literature __ social history
__ community planning  __ exploration/ __ maritime history __ transportation
___conservation __ settlement __ military __ other:
Specific dates Architect/Builder

Construction dates ca. 1885

Evaluation for:

National Register Maryland Register X not evaluated

Summary Statement of Significance

Located on Batts Neck on Kent Island, the Graham House displays a typical I-house form, with its single-pile, center-hall plan.

Reflecting nation-wide trends, the I-house form was common among rural residences in Queen Anne’s County from the mid-

nineteenth century through the first years of the twentieth century. Edwin K. and Martha Graham likely built the house circa 1885 on

twenty-five acres that they bought from Henry C. Legg, a substantial landowner in this part of Kent Island. The Grahams owned the

property on Batts Neck for twenty years, until they defaulted on their mortgage in 1904. Between 1904 and the early 1970s, this small
“farm passed through numerous owners, and was a tenant farm for much of the twentieth century.

Historical Narrative

Built circa 1885, the Graham House displays a typical I-house form, with its single-pile, center-hall plan. Reflecting nation-wide
trends, the I-house form was common among rural residences in Queen Anne’s County from the mid-nineteenth century through the
first years of the twentieth century. I-houses from this period often exhibit a rear ell that provided space for the kitchen and other
service spaces. The Graham House, however, apparently did not have an ell until the current owners constructed one in 2006. The
kitchen may be in its original location, the east front room, or it may have been housed in an addition that has since been removed.

The Graham House was built on about 25 acres of land that Edwin K. Graham purchased in 1884 from Henry C. Legg, a substantial
landowner in this part of Kent Island.! In 1880, according to the U.S. Census, Graham was living further south on the island with his
wife Martha, his sister-in-law, and two boarders, and was working as a farmer. Graham was probably a tenant farmer at that time, and
he and his family likely moved to the new house on the Batts Neck property circa 1885.2

Graham’s twenty-five-acre parcel was considerably smaller than the average farm in Queen Anne’s County in the second half of the
nineteenth century.” In this period, wheat and corn were the chief crops being raised in the county, and it is possible that the
Grahams’ farm produced fruits and vegetables for sale as well.* By the third quarter of the nineteenth century, Eastern Shore grain
farmers had difficulty competing with the Great Plains states for the national market, so farmers increasingly turned to fruit
production. The soil of Queen Anne’s County was particularly suited for raising peaches, but other fruits such as pears, apples and
berries proved profitable. In 1891, the county shipped approximately 100,000 baskets and boxes of peaches, 20,000 baskets of pears,

! See Chain of Title, Continuation Sheet 8-2 for this and all subsequent deed references.

? His name does not appear on An lllustrated Atlas of Kent and Queen Anne Counties, MD (Philadelphia: Lake, Griffing & Stevenson,
1877), suggesting that he did not own real estate in the county at that time.

7 1860-1890 Federal Censuses, Historical Census Browser (Chatlottesville, VA: University of Virginia, Geospatial and Statistical
Data Center, 2004), accessed 11 October 2007, <http:/fisher.lib.virginia.edu/collections/stats/histcensus/index.html>. In 1860 the
average farm in Queen Anne’s County was 211 acres; by 1890 the average size was reduced to 174 acres.

*J. Thomas Scharf, The Natural and Industrial Resources and Advantages of Maryland (Annapolis, MD.: C.H. Baughman & Co.,
State Printers, 1892), p. 95.


http://fisher.lib.virginia.edu/collections/stats/histcensus/index.html

9. Major Bibliographical References Inventory No. QA-600

Historical Census Browser. Charlottesville, VA: University of Virginia, Geospatial and Statistical Data Center, 2004. Accessed 11
October 2007. <http://fisher.lib.virginia.edu/collections/stats/histcensus/index.html>.

An Illustrated Atlas of Kent and Queen Anne Counties, MD. Philadelphia: Lake, Griffing & Stevenson, 1877.

Scharf, J. Thomas. The Natural & Industrial Resources and Advantages of Maryland. Annapolis, MD: C.H. Baughman & Co.,
State Printers, 1892,

U.S. Population Census, Queen Anne’s County, Maryland , 1900 and 1910.

10. Geographical Data

Acreage of surveyed property 2.01 acres
Acreage of historical setting 25 acres
Quadrangle name Kent Island Quadrangle scale: 1:24.000 (7.5 minute)

Verbal boundary description and justification

The property boundary is defined by the current parcel boundaries shown on tax map 63, grid 15, parcel 147 in Queen Anne’s
County, Maryland.

11. Form Prepared by

nameftitle Kathryn Gettings Smith and Gerald M. Maready, Jr., Architectural Historians
organization History Matters, LLC date December 21, 2007
street & number 1502 21* Street, NW, 2" Floor telephone  (202) 223-8845
city or town Washington state DC

The Maryland Inventory of Historic Properties was officially created by an Act of the Maryland Legislature
to be found in the Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA,
1974 supplement.

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and record purposes only
and do not constitute any infringement of individual property rights.

return to: Maryland Historical Trust
Maryland Department of Planning
100 Community Place
Crownsville, MD 21032-2023
410-514-7600
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in the kitchen is completely exposed. It encompasses a square firebox with stepped bricks leading up to a brick flue. Non-historic,
wood, cove molding lines the ceiling in the dining room and hall, while a non-historic, elaborate, ogee crown molding is found in the
kitchen.

Secondary Resources (buildings, sites, structures, objects.)

A circa 2000, frame shed sits to the southeast of the house. It has a front-gable roof clad with standing-seam metal, and fiber-cement
weatherboard siding that matches that on the house. The shed rests upon a poured-concrete foundation, and houses a boiler.

A circa 1960, small, frame barn is located southwest of the house. Facing northeast, it comprises a two-story, front-gabled central
section that is flanked by two matching shed-roofed sections. The northernmost side section was added by the current owners, but the
other two parts were extant when they purchased the property in 2001. The barn sits upon a poured-concrete foundation. Its first
story is clad with T-111 siding, while the second story is clad with vertical board siding. A one-leaf, T-111 sliding door is centered on
the fagade, while each side addition contains a double T-111 door with triangular, metal, strap hinges. A one-leaf, vertical board door
with metal strap hinges is centered in the second story of the center section. The roof is clad with corrugated metal, and skylights
pierce the roof of the main block on the south side.
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and 5,000 crates of strawberries and blackberries.” The fruit was sent to the canning operations that developed in the county, or was
transported by rail and ship to Baltimore.

Edwin and Martha Graham owned the farm on Batts Neck for twenty years, until they defaulted on their mortgage in 1904. John F.
and Grace B. Ruth, who purchased the property in 1904, had a farm elsewhere on Kent Island, and most likely leased the Graham
farm to a tenant.’ In Queen Anne’s County, renting farmland was common practice in the early twentieth century. Tenants farmed
more than twice as much land as owners, and most tenant farmers were white.’

The Ruths sold the farm in 1909, then purchased it again in 1927. When John Ruth died in 1938, the property was conveyed to his
sister, Ella Dean of Baltimore, who sold the property in 1943. The small farm changed hands numerous times between 1943 and the
early 1970s. The size of the property remained at twenty-five acres until the early 1970s, when the land was combined with other
parcels and subdivided into fourteen suburban lots.

5 Scharf, p. 96.

1900 U.S. Population Census, Queen Anne’s County, Maryland, District 4, Enumeration District 63, Sheet 2; 1910 U.S. Population
Census, Queen Anne’s County, Maryland, District 4, Enumeration District 68, Sheet 2B. Both before purchasing the Graham farm in
1904 and after selling it in 1909, the Ruths were living on a farm they owned.

71910 and 1920 Federal Censuses, Historical Census Browser.
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Chain of Title

21 December 2001

Matthew U. Miller to Eduardo C. Curlett & Heather L. Cooney-Curlett
Liber SM 883, folio 469

Lot 13, Subdivision of Kentwood; 2.01 acres

28 May 1998

Steven V. Bowling to Matthew U, Miller
Liber SM 619, folio 950

2.01 acres

19 April 1988

Charles J. & Mary C. Ibex to Steven V. Bowling
Liber MWM 303, folio 1

2.01 acres

2 August 1984

David F. & Barbara O. Graham to Charles J. & Mary C. Ibex
Liber MWM 217, folio 366

2.01 acres

23 July 1984

David Weston Gregory, trustee, to David F. & Barbara O. Graham

Liber MWM 217, folio 364

Default in land installment contract between Grahams and Willard M. Sherbert (Equity #6663). 2.01 acres

2 April 1979

Land Installment Contract between David F. & Barbara O. Graham and Willard M. Sherbert
Liber MWM 149, folio 1

2.01 acres

30 March 1979

Christopher A. & Marguerite M. Batzer and Helene Wood Hughes to David Floyd Graham & Barbara Dicus Graham
Liber MWM 149, folio 28

7.28 acres—Lots 13 & 14

15 February 1973

Robert J. Beattie, Joseph S. Downey, Jr., Reginald Jones, Edward F. Mullen, T. Burton Sullivan, Sr., and Thomas B. Sullivan, Jr., co-
partners trading as Shipping Creek Associates to Christopher A. & Marguerite M. Batzer and Helene Wood Hughes

Liber CWC 71, folio 119

Parcel 2: all that farm known as The Thomas Ratcliffe Property, The Ida V. Ozman Property, and The Edwin K. Graham Property;
26.4 acres
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10 July 1972

Roberta E. Frank to Shipping Creek Associates
Liber CWC 65, folio 620

Parcel 2...26.4 acres

Victor A. Frank died prior to deed

28 September 1966

Frank J. Schumacher & Mary Evelyn Schumacher to Victor A. Frank, Jr. & Roberta E. Frank
Liber CWC 24, folio 595

Parcel 2: 26.4 acres

20 January 1949

William L. & Thelma J. Cullison of Baltimore to Frank J. & Mary Evelyn Schumacher

Liber NBW 3, folio 171

All of farm known as The Thomas Ratcliffe Property, The Ida V. Ozmon Property, and The Edwin K. Graham Property; 26.4 acres.

25 June 1948

James Benjamin & Jean A. Bright to William L. & Thelma J. Cullison of Baltimore
Liber NBW 1, folio 113

26.4 acres

3 December 1943

Ella Dean, of Baltimore, to James Benjamin & Jean A. Bright

Liber ASG Jr. 8, folio 570

25 acres, 3 roods & 2 perches

John F. Ruth died 1938 leaving will (WB NSD 1: 89) devising property to sister Ella Dean.

15 August 1927

C. Owen Ford & Carrie L. Ford to John F. Ruth
Liber BHT 7, folio 96

25 acres

1 August 1926

Thomas J. & Grace Melvin to C. Owen & Carrie L. Ford
Liber BHT 5, folio 484

25 acres

18 November 1924

Madison Brown, assignee of mortgage, to Thomas J. Melvin

Liber BHT 2, folio 490

Thomas & Anna Ratcliffe defaulted on 1911 mortgage (2534 Chancery) so sale of property at public auction. Tract known as The
Thomas Ratcliffe Property or The Ida Ozmon Property; 25 acres.

8 September 1910

Ida V. Ozmon & John W. Ozmon to Thomas A. Ratcliffe
Liber SS 8, folio 401

Tract at the head of a branch of Shipping Creek; 25 acres.
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15 February 1909

John F. & Grace B. Ruth to Ida V. Ozmond
Liber SS6, folio 110

25 acres, 3 roods & 2 perches

15 February 1904

John H. C. Legg, attorney, to John F. Ruth

Liber JEG 6, folio 121

Legg attorney for Elmer V. Cook who holds mortgage from Edwin K. Graham & wife; mortgage defaulted & property conveyed to
Ruth at public auction.

25 acres, 3 roods & 2 perches

20 June 1884

Henry C. & Mary E. Legg to Edwin K. Graham

Liber SCD 4, folio 539

Tract situate at the head of a branch of Shipping Creek; 25 acres, 3 roods & 2 perches

No previous instrument.
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